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RFP NNK15542079R - NOHC

Questions

1. Is this acquisition a Woman Owned Small Business set aside?

Yes. This acquisition is a Woman Owned Small Business set aside. See
NNK15542079R REV 1 Page 21 of 56, FAR 52.219-30, Notice of Set-Aside for
Women-Owned Small Business (WOSB) Concerns Eligible Under the WOSB
Program.

2. This RFP includes the total small business set aside clause, the woman owned small
business set aside clause, and the small business subcontracting plan clause. Please
clarify the set aside and reconcile with the subcontracting plan requirement.

This acquisition is a Woman Owned Small Business set aside. A Small Business
Subcontracting Plan is not required (See NNK15542079R REV 1 Page 21 of 56).

3. Is it possible to get any information related to the incumbents currently working?

The incumbent contractor is Innovative Health Applications, LLC (IHA).

4. Are these services currently part of the KENCOM contract (NNK08OQ01C)? If not, who
is the incumbent contractor for these services and what is the current contract number for
those services?

These services are current and part of the Medical and Environmental Support
Contract (MESC), NNK08OQ01C, not the Kennedy Environmental and Medical
Contract (KEMCON).

5. If resumes are not included in the page limitation, please provide a page limitation per
resume, if any.

Resumes are limited to one (1) page (See NNK15542079R REV 1 Page 43 of 56).

6. Given the 24 page limitation and 5 page limitation for this section (Overall Management
Approach), will the government allow ‘Bios’ of proposed key personnel? Or, not count
resumes against page count?

Resumes will not count towards overall page count (See NNK15542079R REV 1
Page 43 of 56).



RFP NNK15542079R – NOHC RFP Questions

2 of 6

7. Should the key personnel resumes be included in the technical volume and is that to be
considered part of the page count limitations?

See Question 5 & 6.

8. The RFP requires bidders to include resumes for key personnel positions. Please confirm
our assumption that resumes are not included in the five (5)-page limit established for the
“Overall Management Approach” section.

See Question 5 & 6.

9. Question: Will the government please allow for a 1 week extension to the due date?

This solicitation has been extended. See FBO notice and NNK15542079R REV 1
Page 44 of 56.

10. If an offeror intends to retain the incumbent staff, but is unable to secure the resumes of
these individuals, can the offeror provide sample resumes of qualified individuals (who
will not perform services under the contract) to demonstrate our understanding of the
types of individuals necessary to provide these services?

Resumes should reflect the proposed personnel which shall be evaluated in accordance
with Section M.

11. Please confirm our assumption that the BPA will be a single award.

Yes. A single award BPA will be awarded.

12. Will an electronic copy of the proposal need to be submitted along with the identified
hard copies?

No.

13. Will an electronic version of Table L-01 be made available to complete for the price
response?

No.

14. Is there a standard format for the Past Performance information?

No.
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15. Where should the response to the items in Section K be provided in the proposal?

The items in Section K shall be provided in Volume IV: Representations and
Certifications, of the proposal (See NNK15542079R REV 1 Page 44 of 56).

16. Who is the Secondary POC?

The secondary POC is Marco Pochy, marco.l.pochy@nasa.gov.

17. Should Michoud Assembly Facility (MAF) be included in the list of locations where
EHRS is deployed?

Yes.

18. Considering the limited pages allotted, may we format tables and graphics in 10-point
font?

No, See NNK15542079R REV 1 Page 43 of 56.

19. The last sentence in Section B.1, Paragraph 2, references Section H.2, Task Ordering
Procedures. H.2 does not address that topic specifically.

This is a typographical error. See NNK15542079R REV 1 Page 2 of 56.

20. Please define “installation service facilities” in Section G.2(c)(7). Provide specific
guidance on how IT resources for contract support will be charged (e.g. ACES
computers, server support, etc…)

The following will be government furnished services: ACES computers, office supplies
(phones, desks and computers), and work space.

21. Does Section K.2(c)(iv) apply to the NOHC? Please clarify if this a Total Small Business
Set-Aside or a WOSB Set-Aside

See Question 1.

22. Based on the list of ten (10) labor categories provided in Attachment J-03, there are no
categories that reflect the administrative and logistic event-related work required for the
annual Occupational Health Meeting, the Triennial Occupational Health Reviews, or any
other “ad hoc” Occupational Health Reviews the project team is expected to attend per
year. Please provide clarification and/or an additional labor category.

The labor categories in Attachment J-03 remain unchanged. It is the government’s
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position that administrative and logistical support is not required for supporting
scheduled or ad hoc triennial occupational health reviews.

23. Table L-01 lists two categories for “Travel and Other Direct Costs (ODCs)” and
“Materials.” May it be assumed that subcontract costs in support of the statement of work
(e.g. sub-contracted support to conferences) would be included in “Other Direct Costs?”

Subcontract costs in direct support of a conference would be included in Other Direct
Costs (ODC).

24. The government has assigned 1040 hours to the Occupational Health Physician labor
category. We would like further clarification as to how 1040 is to be distributed: 5 days
per week, 4 hours per day (multiplied by 52 weeks) already comes to the total: 1040.
However, we have also calculated that six (6) trips of five continuous working days
should come to approximately 336 hours. Are the total hours of 1040 inclusive of the six
trips, or is the government going to increase the hours to reflect the additional LOE for
the six trips?

The additional LOE required for onsite occupational health review support will be
authorized.

25. Will the government permit flexibility in the days worked by the Occupational Health
Physician e.g. 20 hours/week in 2 ½ days.

Each offeror’s approach will be evaluated in accordance with Section M.

26. Labor categories listed include location information. Is it a requirement of this contract
that all of the labor provided for these categories be located at that location, or is the
government going to allow flexibility in those locations (i.e. telecommuting) in order to
promote more efficiency?

The government allows flexibility, provided the requirements of the position can still be
met at all times. Each offeror’s approach will be evaluated in accordance with
Section M.

27. Attachment J-03, Labor Category Descriptions, requires the Aerospace Medicine -
Physician Liaison and Occupational Health Physician to have Fellow, American College
of Occupational and Environmental Medicine certifications (FACOEM), yet the labor
categories and SOW requirements do not appear to require those qualifications.

See NNK15542079R Attachment J-03 Position Descriptions REV 1.
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28. The Senior Applications Analyst in Attachment J-03, Labor Category Descriptions,
requires a Bachelor degree in Health Information Management. As certification can be
achieved through multiple degree routes, will the government be willing to accept
alternate certification in lieu of a formal degree in Health Information Management?

Yes, provided that the requirements of the position can still be achieved.

29. Are resumes excluded from page count limitations?

See Question 5 & 6.

30. May we use a smaller point type for graphics?

No. See Question 18.

31. The Statement of Work (SOW) states, "The BM shall support weekly meetings with the
COR to discuss project/deliverable progress, upcoming projects and actions, and other
situations for which OCHMO should be made aware of. Status reports (one or two page
bulleted) that summarize the Contractor’s activities and projects, at KSC, JSC, and HQ
locations, shall be provided in accordance with DRD 004."DRD 004 is the Biweekly
Activity and Status Report. Should Section 3.0 read biweekly instead of weekly?

No. These are two separate requirements. Meetings with the COR will be weekly.
Reports will be required bi-weekly per DRD 004.

32. Historically, has the NOHC contractor provider maintained malpractice insurance, given
this role is more aligned with policy development and review?

No.

33. Is malpractice insurance required for NOHC?

No.

34. The RFP does not indicate whether the ACES contractor provider will furnish IT
equipment and software for the NOHC contract. Will NASA provide hardware (laptops,
desktops) and software for the NOHC?

See Question 20.
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35. Is there equipment that will be provided or equipment the contractor will be required to
replace in support of the NOHC?

See Question 20.

36. The RFP specifies estimated hours, in Table L-01, for some positions we believe are
basically full-time positions (ex. 1880 hours). In order to accurately price L-01, we would
like to understand how these hours were determined. What is the basis for the 1880
estimated hours?

1880 are the productive hours and 200 non-productive hours (holidays, sick leave and
vacation).

37. Within the page count limits, we would like to insert a one or two page Executive
Summary upfront to introduce our company and reduce the Requirements Approach from
16 pages to 14 pages. If that is possible, we would still remain within the 24 page
requirement. Will NASA agree that we have the latitude to make that adjustment?

No.


